BARKING PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Parish Council Meeting held at Barking village hall at 7.00pm on Thursday 14th March 2024

Present

Cllr M Tabberer (Chair), Cllr R Fellowes, Cllr S Butler, Cllr A Ross, Cllr M Harper and Cllr M Bailey (8pm)

District Cllr D Pratt

In Attendance

One member of the public

Mrs L Rogers Clerk

Bpc95/23 Apologies

Suffolk County Cllr K Oakes

Bpc96/23 Declaration of Interests and Applications for Dispensation

No interests were declared and no requests for dispensation had been received.

Bpc97/23 To Approve Minutes of the Meetings held on 18th January 2024

The minutes of the meetings on 18th January 2024 were approved by the councillors and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Bpc98/23 Report from County Cllr Kay Oakes

Cllr Oakes report was circulated to the councillors – (appendix 3)

Bpc99/23 Report form District Cllr Dan Pratt

Cllr Pratt's report was circulated to the Councillors (appendix 2) No matters were raised

Bpc100/23 Public Forum

No matters were raised

Bpc101/23 Planning Matters

- a. APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION DC/24/00330 Proposal: Householder Planning Application Erection of detached outbuilding/garden store Location: Kon-tiki, 3 Dennis Close, Barking. The councillors agreed to support the application.
- b.APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION DC/23/05883 Proposal: Full Planning Application Erection of 2No dwellings including change of use of agricultural land to residential amenity land (following demolition of Tye Barn Cottage and Michaelmas). Location: Tye Barn Cottage and Michaelmas, The Tye, Barking
- c. APPLICATION FOR RESERVED MATTERS DC/24/01057 Application for approval of Reserved Matters pursuant to Outline Planning Permission DC/20/02426 Appearance, Landscaping and Layout for Erection of 11no dwellings, commercial B1 (office) space, A1/A3 farm shop/cafe, new vehicular access, new footpath, play area and associated parking, landscaping and attenuation basin at Willisham Hall, Willisham Hall Road, Willisham. The councillors agreed to object to the application for the following reasons: Intensification of the site, increase in traffic along a very busy road, the large number of proposed houses, Increase in traffic due to the shop and businesses, the large ongoing problem of flooding on the road

Bpc102/23 Finance

- a. The councillors approved the RFO Report authorise payments made since the last meeting and to be made; they noted any income received since the last meeting; reviewed the Reconciliation of Accounts against Bank Statement (appendix 1)
- b. The Councillors agreed to move the £1.35 and money from the parish paths group to the reward deposit account.

Bpc103/23 Footway

Cllr Oakes, the Community Engineer and the Clerk walked the route of the path and Suffolk County Council will carry out a feasibility study.

Bpc104/23 Village Coffee Morning

It was agreed to hold a village coffee morning on Saturday 4th May 10am – 12pm. Cllrs Butler & Harper to organise refreshments with a budget of up to £60 agreed. Cllr Tabberer to coordinate the event and advertising on Facebook, magazine, notice board and website.

Bpc105/23 Village Hall Management Committee

The AGM is on 15th May and it may not be possible to form a committee to run the hall unless new people come forward to join the committee. Costs are high. It was agreed to trial a handyman post for 2 hours a week to help with the workload. (£40)

Bpc106/23 Land North of The Tye Easement

The Councillors agreed the terms of the draft easement and Cllrs Tabberer and Fellowes signed the contract. Clerk to take contract to solicitors in readiness of a completion date. Clerk to raise the level of fidelity insurance.

Bpc107/23 National Grid Pylons

Many people and groups are disappointed with the ESO report about the project. The KC is to look to see if it can be challenged as it has not covered the points it should have covered. The statutory consultation begins soon. It was agreed that banners to raise awareness can be displayed outside the garage and village hall.

Bpc108/23 Beacon 6th June for D-Day Centenary

It was agreed to move the beacon from the village hall to the place on the Tye. Cllr Bailey to liaise with Mike Smith to arrange in time for the 6th June lighting. Arrangements for the event to be made at the May meeting.

Bpc 109/23 Management of the Tye

- a) Building work at Cameron Croft Clerk to forward the planning permission to the councillors
- b) Grass cutting –the new contractor to start in the spring. The football pitch area to be chain harrowed and rolled to remove the worst of the molehills in the spring
- c) It was agreed to employ Jake Harper to mow the footpaths across the Tye and grass at the rear of the village hall cutting. Wages to be agreed. It was agreed for Cllr Harper to service the mower and invoice the parish council.
- d) Horse Grazing on the Tye It was agreed not to allow this in case of attracting other unwanted grazing and problems arising.
- e) Litter Bin Near Play Area Cllr Butler agreed to install the new litter bin and remove the old litter bin.
- f) DEFRA Brown's have said that future arrangements for the Tye will be similar to the present ones. It was agreed to continue to apply for DEFRA funding
- g) A tractor has been driven on the Tye past the play area and the ground is very soft. It has left very large ruts in the ground that need repair. Clerk to ask Mike Smith if he is able to help resolve the problem.

Bpc110/23 Play Area Report

The Councillors agreed that no remedial work is necessary and only minor issues were raised in the report

Bpc111/23 Benches in the Village

Councillor Butler has inspected all the benches and reports that two need to be cleaned and re-stained, one needs some structural work, two are fine and one by the play area needs replacing. Clerk to obtain quotes for a wooden and a plastic bench for the May meeting.

Bpc112/23 Reports from Councillors

Heritage Asset Register – it is important to register the Causeway as a heritage asset as Jaynic propose to build on land adjacent. Planning will need to agree for the track to be officially registered.

County Wildlife Site – Cllr Pratt urged the council to register the Tye as a County Wildlife Site as it offers some protection from planning applications and registers the Tye's importance and significance for nature. Clerk to check with Brown's if it works with the DEFRA agreement

Ditch to the north of the Tye to the rear of houses and flooding. Cllr Tabberer to discuss with John Bishop.

Bpc113/23 Date of the Next Meeting

Date of next parish council meeting will be at 7.00pm on Thursday 16th May 2024

Meeting closed at 9.15pm

Chairman	Date
----------	------

Defibrillator pads

Cleansing grant

Appendix 1 Financial Report

Income Received since 18.1.24

NM&BWC

MSDC

Schedule of Payments & Receipts from 18.1.2024

56.95

406.38

Barclays	Interest	134.56						
		<u>597.89</u>						
Expenditure (movement since 18.11.2024) and invoices agreed for payment								
L Rogers	February wages	350.71	102151	LGA 1972				
HMRC	February tax	87.60	102152	LGA 1972				
Community Heartbeat	Defibrillator battery	267.00	102153	Public Health Act 1936,s234				
L Rogers	January expenses	29.00	102154	LGA 1972				
L Rogers	March wages	350.51	102155	LGA 1972				
	Cancelled cheque	0.00	102156					
HMRC	March tax	87.80	102157	LGA 1972				
L Rogers	February expenses	60.95	102158	LGA 1972				
J Eaton	Litter picking	169.00	102159	Open Spaces Act 1906, ss9&10				
J Laton	Litter picking	1,402.57	102133	333&10				
Unpresented cheques		1,402.57						
onpresented eneques				Open Spaces Act 1906,				
NSK Landscapes	October grass cut	344.57	102129	ss9&10				
L Rogers	January wages	350.71	102151	LGA 1972				
HMRC	January tax	87.60	102152	LGA 1972				
Community Heartbeat	Defibrillator battery	267.00	102153	Public Health Act 1936,s234				
L Rogers	January expenses	29.00	102154	LGA 1972				
L Rogers	March wages	350.51	102155	LGA 1972				
	Cancelled cheque	0.00	102156					
HMRC	March tax	87.80	102157	LGA 1972				
L Rogers	February expenses	60.95	102158	LGA 1972 Open Spaces Act 1906,				
J Eaton	Litter picking	169.00	102159	ss9&10				

		Balance		
Account	Statement date		Balance less unpaid cheque	es
Community a/c	13.2.24	£10,421.08	£8,903.89	£1,517.19
Base reward a/c	13.2.24	£55,644.40	£55,509.84	£0.00
Parish Paths Partnership a/c	13.2.24	£83.65	£83.65	£0.00
Active saver	13.2.24	£1.35	£1.35	£0.00
		£66,150.48	<u>£64,498.73</u>	

Appendix 2 District Councillor Dan Pratt Report

Mid Suffolk District Council Plan

MSDC's priorities were agreed following extensive consultation to capture residents' views. The core of the plan is putting environmental and social responsibilities at the heart of everything we do. Our priorities encompass four key areas: housing and infrastructure, district resilience, community wellbeing; and environmental sustainability.

Mid Suffolk District Council Budget 2024/25

The draft budget includes a 2% council tax increase. This is to ensure financial stability for running day- to-day services taking into consideration reductions in government grants. Some of our investment priorities include bringing disused land into amenity or other uses, delivering biodiversity net gain, regenerating Stowmarket's town centre and new foot/cycle paths to improve connectivity. In the housing budget it is proposed that rents increase by 7.7% to fund improvements to the Council's housing stock. Many tenants receive housing benefit or universal credit and due to recent increases in the rent portion of this, the major of tenants will not see an increase in rent.

Gateway 14 Skills and Innovation Centre

The proposed Green Skills and Innovation Centre business plan was approved by MSDC subject to funding from Freeport East. Working in partnership with the Universities of Essex and Suffolk, the centre will include office space and areas for training, and research and development.

Electric Bike Hire Scheme

MSDC are collaborating with a Suffolk-based enterprise Eezybike to provide a subsidised electric bike hire scheme. The bikes, based at Needham Lakes café, provides residents and visitors an opportunity to try an e-bike without making any financial commitment and consider it as a sustainable transport option.

Community Grant awarded to Battisford Village Hall

Battisford Village Hall have been awarded over £13,000 to improve the energy efficiency of the building by installing new insulation to the wall and roof, and replacement of windows and doors.

Home Insulation

Eligible households can still apply for energy efficiency measures in their homes. More information can be found in the link: https://www.midsuffolk.gov.uk/w/mid-suffolk-cosyhomes

Locality Award

This year's locality awards are still open for applications. Any group or organisation can apply for amounts of £250 or more. Please contact me for an application form.

Dr Daniel Pratt

Mid Suffolk District Councillor

E: daniel.pratt@midsuffolk.gov.uk

T: 07775389193

Appendix 3 County Councillor Kay Oakes Report

Public consultation on Suffolk County Council's proposed devolution deal starts on 18 March A 10-week public consultation on our proposed devolution deal with the Government will start on 18 March and run through until 26 May. The consultation will be in two main parts – an open survey, hosted by Suffolk County Council, that any residents can complete and a sample survey of 1000 Suffolk residents conducted independently by Ipsos Mori. The consultation will be available through our website www.suffolk.gov.uk/devolution and social media. There will also be media coverage highlighting the consultation. Dragon Patcher lands in Suffolk to bolster response to rural potholes Suffolk Highways has welcomed the new pothole-repairing machine to help fix the growing number of potholes experienced nationally during the winter season, with a trial set to initially target defects in rural Suffolk. The Dragon Patcher is a machine that releases compressed air which cleans the surface of the road, before heating the surface to a temperature that enables repair material to bond effectively with the road surface, allowing the pothole to be repaired with an aggregate and hot bitumen material. Compared with the traditional approach of repairing potholes, the Dragon Patcher can work five times faster. This trial is in addition to the potholes being repaired around the clock as part of our routine repair programme, during the past two months Suffolk Highways has repaired 2,851 potholes across Suffolk. Fuelled by the biodiesel, HVO (hydrotreated vegetable oil), the patcher reduces raw material use and creates zero waste and has shown to provide significant carbon savings when compared to traditional patching techniques. Once the trial ends in Suffolk, a decision will be taken on whether to roll out the technology across the county. Councils' loft insulation offer for Suffolk homes Suffolk's Public Sector Leaders have launched a Suffolk Loft Insulation offer, teaming up with builders' merchant Travis Perkins to offer Suffolk residents a significant reduction on loft insulation. There are four product options available, and residents will receive a 50% discount off their purchase (up to £200), with free delivery. According to The Energy Saving Trust, it is estimated that an uninsulated home loses a quarter of its heat through its roof. An effective way to reduce this heat loss, and heating bills, is to insulate your loft, attic or flat roof. Correctly installed insulation should pay for itself many times over in its 40-year lifetime. The offer is open to anyone and will close once the allocated funding has been spent. To find out more visit www.greensuffolk.org/at-home/grants/. Simply fill out the online order form and Travis Perkins will be in touch to arrange payment and delivery. The Loft Insulation Grant is being funded by Suffolk's Public Sector Leaders and Travis Perkins and will help contribute to Suffolk's Climate Emergency Plan and our vision for Suffolk to become Carbon Neutral by 2030. Have your say on Suffolk's local transport plan Residents are invited to share their views on how they travel to help inform Suffolk's Local Transport Plan. The plan sets out a long-term vision for transport in Suffolk and covers key themes such as decarbonisation of transport, strengthening the local economy, promoting health, wellbeing and social inclusion, and creating better-connected places that encourage a range of transport choices. Suffolk County Council is asking for feedback on the key themes proposed for the fourth version of the plan, which will cover the period until 2040 and respond to long-term transport opportunities and challenges facing Suffolk and the UK. A link to the survey can be found at https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/ltp4. The consultation will run for eight weeks until 8 April 2024. Feedback from the consultation will be collated and inform the production of the draft local transport plan. The full draft document will then be subject to further consultation later in the year. Council budget approved with a focus on protecting the most vulnerable Suffolk County Council has confirmed its financial budget for 2024-25.

The £752.8m package was approved at the Full Council meeting on Thursday 15 February 2024, with the priority to protect vulnerable adults and children across the county. Despite the recently announced uplift in government funding and asking residents for the maximum Council Tax contribution, it is still not sufficient to cover the rising costs imposed by inflation, or the increasing levels of demand for services - in particular children's care, special educational needs, and disabilities (SEND) and home to school transport. However, as a direct result of the government's recent intervention to provide further funding, the following proposals were approved: £500,000 of project funding will be made available to all arts and heritage organisations in Suffolk from April 2025 – it is intended that this funding will be available every year going forward. £528,000 of core funding to nine arts and heritage organisations in Suffolk will end in March 2025. 2 £45,000 will be reinstated to support the County Music Service from April 2024 2 £9 million of reserves will be used to balance the 2024-25 budget. To provide care and services for vulnerable children and adults, the next two years will see an additional £42.7 million allocated to children's services, and an additional £29.9 million for adult services. However, this means £64.7 million of savings needs to be found at the same time. These significant savings over the next two years include: £11 million of staffing costs through changing the way services are delivered and restructuring across the council. £30.6 million of additional savings from an extension of the council's hugely successful Adult Social Care Transformation programme. The council's budget will increase by 8.6% (from £693.0 million to £752.8 million), some of which is generated by a 4.99% increase in the council's share of Council Tax, and additional Government funding. The increase of 4.99% to Council Tax is made up of a 2.99% increase in general Council Tax and a 2.00% increase dedicated to funding adult care. This will see the council's share of a Band B property's bill rise by £1.12 per week, compared to last year. More of Suffolk's tree cover and orchards to be restored Suffolk County Council has secured funding of £201,213 from the government's Local Authority Treescapes Fund on behalf of Babergh District Council, East Suffolk Council, Mid Suffolk District Council, Ipswich Borough Council and West Suffolk Council. The funding will go towards the planting of the trees, many of which are 'standards' around six feet in height when planted. The funding also covers three years of maintenance to help the trees become established. The Fund aims to restore tree cover in non-woodland areas which may have been impacted by issues such as disease, habitat degradation or ageing tree stock. Many of the proposed projects will involve their local community and pupils from local schools. Creating more orchards is one of the themes across the planting projects. Nationally, there has been a decline in the number of orchards because of commercial pressures and increased imports This loss of orchards has impacts on the species they support, with less blossom and fruit for food, and less shelter and shading. It also means we are losing some of our heritage varieties and reducing genetic diversity. One example of this is the creation of a community orchard in Woods Meadow Country Park, near Lowestoft. Local varieties of apple, plum, gage and cherry trees will be sourced from the Suffolk & Diples & Drchards Project. The trees will be cared for by wardens, the Woods Meadow volunteer group, the local primary school, and local residents. The fruit will be available for the local visitors to the park to pick and eat, but also a good source of food for birds and wildlife. Council to review weed control for roads and pavements In February 2022, the council agreed to stop using glyphosate in its routine weed treatment programmes, to find more natural alternatives to help protect the local environment. However, the alternative products proved unable to meet requirements, which was further exacerbated by exceptional growing conditions. Multiple applications were sometimes needed which could introduce other negative environmental impacts. It has proved a challenge to reduce high performing treatments, whilst significantly mitigating the environmental impact. Other local authorities locally have experienced

a similar situation. Regular weed treatment on our highway network will continue using a variety of methods, with plans for glyphosate being considered only when appropriate - the ambition remains to reduce the use of glyphosate as far as possible. Teams will continue to monitor and research the different approaches being used to remove weeds on our roads and pavements. Where needed, glyphosate would be used responsibly as it is one of the most cost-effective and long-lasting solutions. £4.4 million to be spent on additional staff to strengthen SEND reform Suffolk County Council's Cabinet confirmed today that 60 new members of staff will be recruited to drive forward important reform to the way special educational needs and disability (SEND) services are delivered in Suffolk. New Cabinet Member for Education and SEND, Andrew Reid, today reaffirmed Suffolk County Council's commitment to ensuring improvements to the SEND service go further and faster. This includes an increase in permanent SEND staff of nearly 15%. These new posts will support the improvement of the quality and timeliness of assessments, plans, reviews, and communications with families. In January, a report by Ofsted and Care Quality Commission (CQC) found significant concerns with the way SEND services are delivered by the NHS and Suffolk County Council. In response to this, the Local Area Partnership, made up of Suffolk County Council, the NHS Suffolk and Northeast Essex Integrated Care Board (ICB) and NHS Norfolk and Waveney ICB, must submit a Priority Action Plan by March 7 outlining the improvement programme. In order to support this improvement programme, an additional £4.4million was signed off during the budget discussions at Full Council on February 15. Of this, £3.4million will provide 46 new full-time posts – a increase of 14.76% in current staffing levels. An additional £1million will be spent in 2024/25 to fund 14 temporary posts. Cabinet today agreed to delegate authority to approve the priority action plan to be submitted to Ofsted and CQC on 7 March to the statutory director of children's services in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education and SEND. The priority action plan is also being approved at the Suffolk and North-East Essex ICB Executive and the Norfolk and Waveney ICB Executive on 4 March 2024. Suffolk's wettest ever winter breaks highway response records Storm Babet saw nearly two months' worth of rain fall in 24 hours, the subsequent storms and severe weather events saw more sustained rainfall, leading up to what Met Office described as the fifth wettest February on record since 1836 with several days still to go. As a result of the extreme weather, Suffolk Highways has seen an 82% increase in requests for action on the highway - 18,000 additional customers reports so far during the 2023/24 financial year. The number of drainage and flooding issues have increased by a staggering 364% in the last five months when compared to the same period in 2022/23. Suffolk Highways has also responded to 2,117 emergency incidents in the same period, which represents a 64% increase on last year. The increased wet weather coupled with occasional freezing temperatures this time of year results in a sharp rise in pothole breakouts. Despite these challenges, highways has completed 34% more repairs to potholes in 2023/24 when compared with the previous year. To help keep up with this unparalleled increase in demand, Suffolk County Council is investing more resource and trialling new ways of working, including: Increased highway funding allocated to fix potholes, resurface roads and repair drainage.70% increase in highway crews to maintain and repair the roads. Launching a trial of new 'Dragon Patcher' equipment – a pothole-repairing machine which can repair potholes up to five times faster than traditional methods. Trailing a 'Road Mender' – a patching machine used in urban areas which willhelp boost productivity and present more environmental benefits.